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UBC Engineers Pvt Ltd,
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5. Mr. Mohammed Salim,
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JUDGEMENT
(9th July, 2019)

Justice A.I.S. Cheema.

The  appellant-original  petitioner filed Company  Petition
No.N0.36/2014 on 15.5.2014 before the Company Law Board, now National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT in short), Mumbai Bench, Mumbai, against
the respondents claiming oppression and mismanagement. During the
pendency of the company petition, the respondents filed Company Petition
No.1/2016 against the appellant (hereinafter referred to as ‘Petitioner’) and
both the company petitions came to be disposed of by NCLT by the impugned
order dated 6t February, 2017. NCLT found the Company Petition filed by
the appellant to be not sustainable and the allegations of oppression and
mismanagement made were found to be not proved. NCLT held the other
Company Petition No.1/2016 filed by the respondents to have become
redundant. The present appeal arises out of the dismissal of the Company
Petition No.36 of 2014.

2. Briefly stated the appeal is more reproduction of the Company Petition
and the reply filed by the respondents with arguments. The appellant claims
that the Respondent No.1 M/s UBC Engineers Pvt Ltd (the Company) was
incorporated on 20th April, 2005 and the registered office is situated at Plot
No.G-36, Sector 20, Belapur, Navi Mumbai-400614. (Case put up before
NCLT appears to be that Respondent No.2 was having proprietary concern
“United Building Company and Appellant and Respondent No.3 were
employees who joined respondent No.2 and Company was incorporated). In

was incorporated to carry on business of undertaking various civil
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construction contracts. The company is registered as a Government
Contractor with the Military Engineer Services (MES) and is undertaking
various projects of MES. The projects were being carried out at Kochi and
Colaba, Mumbai. It is stated that (and not disputed) that the appellant and
Respondent No.2, Mr. K.N. Pillai, and Respondent No.3, Mr. Kailash Barde
were the first Directors. Mr. K.N. Pillai was allotted 52000 shares, Mr.
Kailash Barde was allotted 24000 shares and the petitioner was allotted
24000 shares. Thus Mr. K.N. Pillai had 52% and the appellant and
Respondent No.3 each had 24% shares. These three persons and
Respondent No. 4 Mr. Parmod N. Pillai were the four directors. Mr. Parmod
N. Pillai is son of Respondent No.2 and was inducted as Director on 1.2.2009.
The petitioner claims that he was Director incharge of MES Project and was
taking care of the same and not concerned with day to day Management of
the company. Respondent No.5, Mohd. Salim is Accountant (thus
Respondent No.2 to 4 are only the contesting Respondents). According to
appellant-petitioner in March 2014 he had occasion to go through the
statutory record of the company and found discrepancies and he looked into
the record. He claims that there were serious lapses and instances of
mismanagement. In short he has made the following allegations in the appeal
(which were also made in the Company Petition):-

a) Firstly, that annual returns were submitted till March, 2011 with

various errors which were brought to notice of Respondent No.5 but

were not rectified;

b) Secondly annual returns for the financial year 2011-12 and 2012-13

were not filed;
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c) Thirdly registered office of the company was transferred by the
company to the personal name of Respondent No.2 in the financial year
2007-2008. According to appellant in that year Respondent No.2 asked
him to sign a document to replace/substitute office premises which was
given as security for the purpose of enlistment with MES. The office
premises was substituted by land of the company at Dighodea. The
appellant claims that he did not ealise that the office premises was being
transferred to Respondent No.2;

d) Fourthly, after fraudulently transferring the property of the company
Respondent No.2 started collecting rent from the company for the
premises on pretext that it was rented out to the company. There were
not Board Resolutions for such actions;

e) Fifthly, from the registered office of the company four partnership
firms namely (i) UBC Balaji Port Cane Works (ii) Omni Infrastructure
Services (iii) Unibuild Engineers and (iv) Hepta Enterprises are
functioning in which other than the appellant the other Directors have
interest and the company is bearing expenses of those firms by them
using the stationery, staff, salary etc;

f) Sixthly, Rs.1.50 crores were siphoned off from the company by
Respondent No.2 towards material and labour of construction of his
Bungalow at Plot No.144, Sector 21, Kharghar, Navi Mumbai;

g) Seventhly, Rs.15 lakhs was siphoned off by Respondent No.2 for
addition and alteration work of a Bungalow at Kochi owned by his wife.
Here also, manpower and construction material at the cost of the

company was used;
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h) Eighthly, loan of Rs.24,10,000/- was given to M/s Unibuild
Engineers, a partnership firm in instalments in which Respondent No.2
to 4 are partners. Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act in short)
was violated. Loan was given although the company itself was taking
various loans from Banks for its functions.
3. The appellant further claims that on 12t March, 2014 he wrote an e-
mail to Accountant, Respondent No.5, that his particulars had not been shown
in Form No.20B. The appellant met Respondent No.2 on 18th March, 2014
and questioned the irregularities. The Respondent No.2 made counter
allegations against the appellant claiming that he was neglecting the projects.
Then Respondent No.2 served letter dated 1.4.2018 withdrawing the benefits
of the appellant-petitioner. His remunerations were cancelled without giving
opportunity to explain. Then he was served notice of EOGM to be held on
29.4.2014. The agenda was to remove him from Board of Directors. It appears
that the appellant filed letter dated 22.4.2014 making various allegations as
are now being made and claimed that he did not get sufficient time. It appears
that due to the Companies Act, 2013 (Act-in short) coming into force the
Respondents issued fresh notice dated 3.5.2014. Board Meeting was held on
12.5.2014 and EOGM was held on 6.6.2014 removing the petitioner from
Board of Directors.
4. The appellant then goes on to refer to the pleadings made by the
respondent in NCLT adding arguments as to how the same were wrong and
the prayer of the appeal is to grant the prayer which were made in the company
petition like seeking disqualification of Respondent No.2 to 4 as Directors;

appointment of Receiver-Administrator; recovery of undue gains made by
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Respondent No.2 to 4; directing the Respondent No.1 Company to buy shares
of Respondent No.2 and 3 etc.

5. The Respondent filed reply in the NCLT and after the pleadings were
completed NCLT heard both the parties and after referring to the pleadings
and arguments the findings were recorded in para S to 6.4. NCLT heard both
the sides and dismissed the company petition of the appellant as mentioned
earlier.

6. We have heard counsel for both sides. At the time of arguments the
learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the appellant was director
since inception having 24% shareholding. It is argued that Respondent No.4,
Parmod, son of Respondent No.2 was inducted as director although he held
no share in the company. The counsel referred to compilation of documents
filed by the appellant after filing of the appeal. The compilation is Diary
No.8649. This was filed after it was realised at the time of arguments on
27.11.2018 that both the sides had not filed copies of document on which they
wanted to rely and which were part of the NCLT record. We may mention here
that although the appellant made various allegations, the appeal memo did
not link the allegations to any annexures so as to make the appeal clear. As
such the allegations made in the appeal are general leaving it for us to search
the details from various documents which have been later filed by the
appellant and also the respondent. Coming back to the Arguments, Diary
No0.8649 compilation of documents was filed by the appellant and the Learned
counsel for the appellant referred Page 57 as the letter dated 1st April, 2014
sent by Respondent No.2, Managing Director, claiming the letter to be on

behalf of the Board of Directors. The arguments is that there was no authority

Company Appeal(AT) No.256 of 2017



given to Respondent No.2 to send such letter making allegations against the
appellant. Reference is then made to (Page 58) Notice dated 7th April, 2014
calling EOGM on 29.4.2014 with Explanatory Statement (Page 59). Although
the appellant claims that he did not get sufficient opportunity to respond to
the notice proposing to remove him as Director, his letter dated 22.4.20124
(Page 60) shows that he responded with great details including invoking the
provisions of the Companies Act making various allegations which are now
found in the Company Petition and the appeal. The learned counsel for the
appellant referred to Page 67 of his Compilation which was addressed to
Respondent No.5, the accountant, demanding inspection of documents
making allegations that he was avoiding on the pretext that he needs prior
permission of Respondent No.2. The Respondent No.5 appears to have replied
(Page 68) that he was only an employee and had nothing to do with the
disputes of the Board of Directors and that he had met the Managing Director
(Respondent No.2) and the MD has asked him to inform the appellant that he
may take inspection of the bills as referred, at any time. Respondent No.5
added the statement that the appellant has taken inspection of records on
various occasions and he was never obstructed.

7. Learned counsel for appellant referred to the convenience compilation
filed by Respondents Diary No.8679 (Pages 155 to 161) whereby the appellant
was given fresh notice and EOGM came to be fixed on 6.6.2014 and the
appellant came to be removed as Director for reasons recorded in the
Resolution of the company. Learned counsel referred to these documents to
submit that when such actions were taken/initiated against the appellant he

filed company petition. Learned counsel for the appellant referred to his
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compilation (Page 355) and submitted that on 9.6.2005 there was an
Agreement of Sale executed by Respondent No.2 who had jointly acquired land
alongwith one Mrs Hema A Chainani through tripartite agreement from City
Industrial Development Corporation of Maharashtra Ltd having Plot No.G-36
at Belapur, Navi Mumbai which building was constructed and shared with
Mrs Hema A Chainani. It is stated that by the Agreement Respondent No.2
decided to transfer, sell his share in the building to the company for
Rs.17,50,000/- and entered into the agreement. Referring to this document
it has been argued that actually it was sale and such property came into
possession of the company but later on Respondent No.2 himself executed
another Deed of Cancellation of agreement as MD of the company and the
agreement was cancelled. The document is at Page 361 (Diary No.8649). It is
argued that the respondents committed such acts on their own without
consent of the appellant. The argument is that the deed of cancellation shows
that there was passing of consideration when the agreement was entered into
and such consideration was then showed as returned in the Deed of
Cancellation. Both the Documents are signed by Respondent No.2 alone in
dual capacities. It is argued that after such cancellation of the agreement in
favour of the company, Respondent No.2 started taking rent from the
company for the use of the premises by the company. It is also argued that
the respondents were part of certain partnerships which were operating from
the premises of the company and for which the appellant had filed police
complaint.

8. Learned counsel for the appellant referred to his compilation (Page 218)

where there is a purchase order from the letterhead of the company to one
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Nirmal Agency asking for supply of various construction articles at the site of
the company with the address shown as 144, Sector 21, Kharghar, Navi
Mumbai. The argument is that at Kharghar the company did not have any
site and this address was of the house of Respondent No.2 and this document
shows articles being supplied at the site of house of Respondent No.2 and thus
there was siphoning of funds of the company. Learned counsel referred to
appeal Page 57 which is part of the copy of the company petition where the
allegations were made in sub para (g) that more than Rs.15 lakhs were
siphoned off by Respondent No.2 for addition and alteration work of the
Bungalow at Kochi which was owned by wife of Respondent No.2. According
to the counsel for the appellant, the respondent did not deny that amount
were spent on addition and alteration work of Bungalow at Kochi. It has also
been argued that the respondents gave loans of Rs.2410000/- to M/s Unibuild
Engineers and even this is not denied. Thus according to the learned counsel
for the appellant there was sufficient material against the respondents to have
fresh audit conducted against the respondents and the company petition
should have been allowed.

9. Against this the learned counsel for the Respondents submitted that
respondents have filed copies of various documents as were filed in NCLT. It
is argued that in NCLT the respondents had filed a convenience compilation
also with index giving explanation to the various allegations and referring to
the pages in the compilation. The copies of such convenience compilation has
been filed before us with affidavit in Diary No.8679 and annexures as
described in the convenience compilation. It would be appropriate to scan
and paste the Explanation part of the convenience compilation which is as

follows:
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Allegation No. 1 - Siphoning of assets of the company. Guilty of conversion, embezzlement and criminal

breach of trust,

Allegation No, 4 - Register office of gompany transferred to R2 in FY 2007-08 withoutany board resolution,

10

4

TRANSFER OF REGISTERED OFFICE

@ ¢

e P T ——

Event

Date

Particulars

Fage No.
Pleadings

e

Pg. No.
Referenc

LT
{b: ory Ho.2679

e §
Compilat ﬁ*gPly G f

G-36, Belapwr s the property
criginally belonging to R2 (K N Pillai)
and Hema. Two floors were given to
company for a brief period of 3 years.
This was given to complete the
formalities of MES registration
wherein it was provided that company
should have an immovable property in
its own name. Once the company
purchased the immovable property in
its own name, it replaced the new
property with R2's property and gave a
new affidavit of new set of movable
and immovahble property.

P has signed the affidavit which wes
required to be filed stating the movable
and immovable property. He has also
thereafter signed one balancs sheet
which was filed with Income tax.

15/04/2005

MOA of UBC - Clause [TII/A/1 -
Object is to takeover of |25
proprietary concern of K N
Pillai,

CPAAG Pa.

ion et

L |=&

21/04/2005

Affidavit verifying movable and | 603
immovable properties. For the
purpese of MES registration Mr.
K N Pillai submitted his cwn

prap A

2-4 | = -

26/05/2005

| Letter from MES dated May | 223

2005 - MES required UBC
Engineers to submit proof of
immovable property owned by
the Company and not by the
Director Mr. Pillai as submitted,

5 |- 72

09/06/2005

K N Pillai transferred G-36 at | 526
Belapur on the name of UBC

T =23

14/03/2008

Purchase of Dighode property | §55
on the name of Company at .
Uran

18 |- 4 !

03/06/2008

Deed of Cancellation of Such | 536
sale deed dated 0%/06/2005.
(This was an Iinterim
arrangement to show property
on the name of Company for
MES purpose, Set off of Rs, 17
lakh was done.

6-12| - 93 |

06/03/2009

Letter from MES Requesting | 224
Affidavit for such request of
UBC for replacement of
Immoveble property. {0-36[
Belapur was replaced with |
Dighode Uran E

6 |— 1% !

26/03/2009

‘Affidavit by Pillai, Prasanth and | 225
Kailash all directors of UBC for [
replacement of such Immovable |
and supplying new mmovable
properties of UBC. (Affdavit
where Mr. Prasanth has signed
and now denying of any such
information of chenge of
Immovable property)

[F-19|—34

1/04/2009

UBC writing to MES supplying | 598
Affidavit for replacement of
new immovable property on the

name of Company

20 |17

11/03/2012

Balance Sbeet signed by Mr.
Prasanth, In the attachments — | of

Pg. 50-52 Property at Uran is | 1/245
hown as FA but property at G-
16 is not there. Mr, Prasanth
Knows about the same transfer.

Rejoinder

2] 25\
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EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO. 2
NO BOARD MEETINGS HAVE BEEN CONDUCTED

Event
Date Particulars Page No. | Pg No,

Pleadings | Reference

Compilation |
I'ieese t:re'r’hz bqa}-d meetings conducted | 09/10/2012 | Minutes  of meeting | 3740-3747 . | =15 W
rein the Petitioner was present and evideneing presence of 26-33 |~

signed, Mr. Prasanth,
He was always in minority (2:1),

EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO.3 & 9

Allegation 3 # Annual rern for FY 201 1-12 and 2012-13 not filed

Allegation 9% Annual Return Form 20B not filed. Name of Patitioner not visible on the said form.

Event ! Date Parficulars Page No.|[Pg.  No.
] Pleadings Reference
Compilation _Q ‘fﬁ 4

Petitioner Mr, Prasanth has not intimated | FY 2012/13 | Annnal Refurn (20 B) | 895 34 -39 |

DIN. This is the sole reason his name is . Explanatory statsment | 901 “4— o -

not appearing. of not showing Mr. -
Prasenth name. |

Annual returns and Annual reports are | 20/8/2013 | Letter from MCA to | Pz, 55 of ] -

filed upto date. Prasanth intimating him | Rejoinder of b G4

his DIN Number — and | CP 1/245
requiing  him to
intimate his DIN to the
Company within 30
days in form DIN - 2,

EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO. 5

Rent collected for reglstered office property owned by Mr, IX N Pillai (R2) and Kochi bungalow owned by
Wio R2 - Anita Pillai i

Event Date Particulars Page No. [Bg.  No. |
Pleadings Reference
: - | Compilation g 6’1'
e T e
] ——300% alter the RZ | 31/03/2012 | Balince Sheet signed | Pg. 24 oF 7] _ 19
m;ﬁ:ﬁlﬁoﬁ;mm@.“MmRem}a by Mr. Prasanth. In | Rejoinder of Lf 2 J'fé Srq
Pillai" appears 2s an interim in the notes 'th? attachments to the | CP 1/245 .
| of a balance shest in related party said at page 46 of
transaction in one of the balance sheet Schedule notes it
signed by P. P has only signed balance shows rent paid to i

f the attachments., Anila Pillai and Rent
sheet and not the rest of the A KTl 0E,

A 7 Prasanth always knew
: this fact which he is

now disputing.
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EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO, 6
Four Partnership Firms running out of Bullding where Reglstered Q

)

1llee of Company is situated

D

herwise but the same is not a part of the record before CLB.

EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO. 7 (A)

Syphoring of 1.5 Cr to be used by Mr. K N Pillai for personal Bungalow ol Khmrghar

Event
Date Particulars Pag=  No. [P Ne.
) Pleadings | Reference
Compi
UBC Balaji Port Cranes 25/032009 | Service  1ax registraticn | 228 =
showing office nddress a5 L|’:|L % él'l
= shop re. | G-36, Belapur
Omni Infrastruchure Servioes 307082075 wice X  Tegistration | 220 ; 4
showing office address s 4"8 T 63
Survey no. 3, plot rie. 1 Uren
(Persona] property of Mr,
— Kailash Barde)
Unibuild Enginesrs 20112014 | Serviee  tax registration | 232 5| - ,5‘{
showing office address gs 1™
. shop ne. 2 ground floor G-36, "
Hepta Eaterprises Service  tax  registration | 233 ) o 1 T é c\
e ound floer G-36
'gineers ocoupy Secm_-l:l Flocr of G-36, Belapur. Mr, Prasanth is merely attempting to mislead the fact that
all parmership firms ere munning out of same premises, . !
Prasanth is placing reliance ©on some evidences taken before Polies in & eriminal case. The criminal ease is initizted
by P ufler process of remaving him was initiated on same set ol eliegations. The trial of the said erimival cases [s
somng on. One of the lady who gave evidencs egains! UBC claiming that she was working for ather firms has
written an affidavit in Marathi claimine ot
=" aftidavit in Marathi claiming eth

i Event Daie Purticulers Fagz  No. | Pg.~ Mo,
Pleadings | Reference
l Compilati
on
Kharghar was used as a store | May 2012 1o | Various Email  exchanged | 234246 53 '65
i April 2014 between Terex Neell and -
house of materials for materials | P mm:::ﬂ b::ua::.!so:iulﬁﬁf: Jo-32
which were required for an office | 02/072013 | Letter Terex Noell (4247 66
that we wers planning to establish Shipplng Giant of Chira) to
WHWeTS pRnning UBC showing intarost of having
i£the Terex Norell's JNPT project UBC s their disiibution 83
representative,  They  alsp
worked out ~ Terex Norell project requestsd to find & sultable
for INPT did not waork out at that location near INPT and New
, . Alrport at Navi Mumbaj,
time and instead they gave us a
project ot Pipava — we have MOU — UBC with Owner with | (20-13] 6i-69
; respect of Shop ne, 23, Bhoomi
received more than | crore from Towers, Plot 28 a;ctar 4, g‘:‘l = QG
Terex in the new projests (proof Kharghar, The same was
v addiioadk d authorized by Terex officials,
Reygshed tniadisoas) dooe), 260372014 | UBC and Terex entered imio | 238 J0-72
Architect has given us a certificate distributorship agreement,
: : g Under such agreement it was e
St prepersy 15 eonstincted mad decided that UBC shell amrange 87 -&14
the 3 storied strucure was a distributor offies neer NPT
4 i Dec 2013 iselr— and Navi Mumbal Alrpert.
completed ta ’ GSTTVABT | K N Pl gt ense hold rghs | 610612 (33 =55
Meither Airport at Navi Mumbal with respest to Plot no. 144 .:}O - g8,
| 21 i for
nor our deal with Terex took off. f.;:ﬂ:lr nfla 4&@@311&: )
Pam:msmadetivn;::h:;:t:ﬂz 30/06/2011 g‘::men:ment Certificate | 619 ?__’}l_ qs
£ 0lleged B o Bel S0RE/Z01T | Assessment of consuction by |23 8]
absolutely fraudulent as we have CIDCO. Gross huild up area 364 -Ix
Sq Mis. Estimated cost of
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1_h______-‘—-—~—______

een  dealing with the same
Vendors for last several Years and

Petitioner  Jiaq deliberately

Suppressed that fact making it g

Supplying materials ar Kharghar
for the purpese of bungalaw,

—

Petiticner cleims that we lave jed,
1.

net at the locatlon

22013

case  of  first  time vendors

21/06/2014

— |

09/092014

28092014

—
Oet 201010
Jan 2011

13

thousand,

construction  of the sgig
Bungalow,

Bungalow,

-_-"_'_-_—————_,____——-——
construction is 36 fac 45

Cestificate  of i ;
rtifi Architect | 1050
declaring  completion  r -

from CIDCO

constructed area,

9549

There is no office at Bhoom| Towers ofthe Company ~ Answer: we never sald leave and lissnse apretment
was executed - we said we were in 1alks (MOU) and thus material was kept at one of the R2"s house and

2. He states that in the Interim raply we claimed that bullding s constructed but P claims that it is not and
seeks to use Commlssioners Report. Architect has given us a certificate that property is constructed and
the 3 storied structure was completed in Dec 2013 itself = in photos 3 stores are visible —

3. We have filed an application for neutral commissioner as commissioner Inspected Bhoomi Towers

| premises without the Respondents In contravention o directions of court arder — thus we find him ta be
blased — affidavit of persan at site on Bhoomi towers attached to upplication for appeintment of newtral
commissioner filed by us = This application is pending «
EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO. 7 (B)
15 Lacs from UBC"s aceount used to renovate personal property at Kochi
Bungalow of Ms. Anita Pillai
t Date Particulars Page No. | Pg. No.
Beoet Pleadings | Referance
Compilati
. on
03/10/2012 VAT Registration of UBC at | 258 roO
1 Shree Miket, Kochi (Reglonal
AT -— office) .
Kochi bunglow is an area r!nchs Pichure  dsplaying fu}]&c 560 101
al Engineers and proof of the
used n regional office |of the S Vi Yawd 8101 8¢
company and is also used. as UBC et Kochi. . 77
i irectors who 7016 | Communication of MES 10 ||
accommodation of directors : 02103 U0 o RO S Mkt | -
g0 to Koehi { accommodation oo me T3 oo Tae annexed various | Pg. 87l
ified in reply to o Minutes of Project review | of C. P/ 36
SR, meeting whersin he was never
spplication for appointment of prescnt but the same were held
jssioner)- most of the at RO, Koghi
i—— TA70172013 | Letter from MES to UBC af its | 504 63
regional meetings are held at the regona offic address -~ Shree
bunglow - & portion has been | | Niket (Emakslom Kochl)
oo’ L0/01/2014 Email wherein Prasanth hnls 507-012 }0 4
converted to office and another as been a party. In the seid email
arest bouse —
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Bourd meeting held whereh one | 1053 53551

af the resolution was to allow 63-89

the Petitioner o take inspecticn ‘:ici
of  expenses  details  of

Occupancy Certificate received | 624 q 0 _cl | 106
Valuation report by arehitect | 628-630 q2-q
eveluating cost of construction +

ar Rs. 56 laz and total valuation

Inluding cost of land comes to 103
141 Crore. 207 Sq mis

Bank statement of federal bank | 774-778

16
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renovation work at Shrez Niket

Prasanth  was privy to  the has been discussed,

information of renovation af
regional office at Kochi, Shree
Niket, The developments of the
said work was sent to him by
[ emails. Al such emails are
annexed at 134 o |g in
Additional documents,
| Atpgno. 152 oFthe sajd document
it is clearly mentioned gt para III
(1) ‘There hasto be a proagramme
for completion of balanee work at
Shree Niket and KN Pillai
emphasis work must be completed
by this month." It is further stated
that separate electriclty connectign
should be taken for commercial
usages.

It was also used as director's
accommodation. Mr. Prasanth
claims that he was MES in charge
and used to visit sites frequently, |
When he was visiting Kochi for
Companies work where was he

staying? .
Prasanth claims that he was not | Oct 2013 to Emails referring to requirement | 1132-1147 | ] o -5
aware of any work to be carried | Jan 2014 of cash at Kochi for
outq for renovation at Kochi, All renovation/repalr  work  were 126-13}
emails were referred to him in his intimated to Prasant_h as he was i
personal emails. _copied to in all emails. 1 t
EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO. 8
Loan given to Unibuild Engineers in violation to Sec 185
Particulars Page No. [Pz No. |
=i o Pleadings | Reforence
Compilati
on
i 01 | M, Prasanth has annexed Bank | 6265
¥ TEoh Gl Mibesely| Fotnays to | Statement wherein 4 payment of I | G | 2 13[,.-
hed entries till 23/04/14 and | 4 0 : N 3 . 5
i l:lﬂcru:n"cs of 25% and 26 | 3/04/2014 24 Lacs approx is made to la
iu:r],?{uzs;}‘u_ Mr., Prasanth had Unibuild Engineers
complete bank statement for the
month and thus it constifutes
suppression of vital facts, . 25/04/201 4 15 lac returned _ ledger entry ;g: ;15; of 120 ]E‘,é
ing cheque number ejoinder
showing cheq 1 oy
Pp. 159 of
26/04/2014 9.54 lac returned Reoinder 12\ 137
to CP 1/245

Company Appeal(AT) No.256 of 2017
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EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO. 11

e
Compliance under Companles Act, 2011 followed while removing Petitioner

© 5

EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO, 12 — ' 674

R2 introduced Mr. Pramod Narayan arbitrarily as director

Event Date Particulars Page  No. | Pg. No.
Pleadings Reference
; | Compilation

Pramod was miroduced as director i | 01/02/2009 Mr. Pramod Narayan | 773 M 45

2009 and P never raised that issue and becomes a Director of |

has infact signed numerous document UBC i

whereln Pramod has signed as director. | 03/12/2010 Letter written to MES | 1128 fab -1 461
informing about change

MES has to be intimated when in censtitution of board

composition of directors change. He
has signed the same.

of UBC and inclusion of
Mr, Pramod Narayan
signed by Mr. Prasanth

Company Appeal(AT) No.256 of 2017

Event Date Perticulars Page No. | Pg. No. '
Pleadings | Reference
_ Compilati
From October _2:013: Petitioner was | 01/04/2014 Companies Act, 2013 e
?sked not to wvisit site at Kochi and was notified with respect
instead to attend office (verbal but can to Holding board
be seen from project review meeting meetings and
that l:m was not at site for site review EOGM/General
meeting.after October 2013), - Meetings.
o 07/0472014 Notice of EOGM | 68and6 "
f’muomr was not attending office and Removing Petitioner to e ]J‘J‘-‘ 23] ﬁq‘ 0
it was t‘:;und that he had caused be held on -2%/4/14 ‘
enarmaus losses to the company. Thus, [22/04/2012 Repl i
he was sent a notice of removal. In the ' m..%iaEﬂNmm dff-;i m. 'l U1 -130 il IIH7
: reply he clmmec! that it was not as per Petitioner
i the newly pnuﬁed_ compzlmics act, | 20/04/2014 No general meeting was |
2013, S0 again a notice was issued and held as proper steps werc !
the proper _procedure was followed, taken to hold the same in :
After sending the second notice of accordance with the new l
mlrnc.val, he immediately filed a gt
criminal case on or about 8% May 2014, [93/05/2014 Notice “sent to all [259&265 | |3} -
directors for convening
Board meeting. |bg— ]5 4
Requisition for holding .
EOGM on 12/05/2014
for removal of Petitioner
a5 Director
12/05/2014 Board meeting held for | 17
deciding date of EOGM.
Mz, Prasanth present,
121052014 Notiee . of EOGM | 101to 103 -
Removing Petitioner to '136, “$o|155-15 1
be held on 06/06/2014
! 06/06/2014 Minutes of EOGM 2557 1o £ w
2% Ly -\ 4y lSE - 16 |

162

169167
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EXPLANATION OF ALLEGATION NO. 13
LOSSES CAUSED AT KOCHI PRQJECTS

Event Date Particulars Page No. |Pg.  Ne.
Pleadings Reference
Compilatio
I I
1. The Petitioner claims that as | 2006-2013 | Petitioner was director in | Pg. 5 Para VI
soon Petitioner was removed in | (October) charge of MES and was | (ii) in CP-36
June 2014 UBC has been involved in execution of
suffering losses. the projects at Kochi
. MES [ssued show cause | 149 to 156 | 50
2. The Petitioner further claims notices to UBC asking . |
that the losses shown may be an for slow progress and
attempt to dilute value of his thrisau'ng that the project
shareholding. will go at risk and cost. -
; : MES list of projects | 1087 158
3. The petitioner was running 2’ undertaken by Petitioner. 5
competitive business through Sr. no. 15 description of
SAP Enterprises and his project Ezimala project under
at Kochi was doing well and as Chief Engineer Kochi.
he was not paying attention on [ 01/04/2014 | Letter cancelling | 67
the UBC's projects the same director's remuneration
were running in losses. benefits for not attending :
to the Kochi projects and
4, Petitioner never attended any having a competitive
project review meetings as he business.
was not interested in UBC's P&L account of Kochi | 157-158 )59-160
work. showing losses caused in
Kochi are equivalent to ‘
5. Petitioner was asked by Mr. KN losses caused that FY to |
Pillai to step down from charge the UBC,
of MES in Nov/2013 and hence Once KN Pillai took | 159-160 161-)62
the same post that period was charge of Kaochi
taken care by R2. Nov/2013 onwards the
: losses mitigated.
6. As on today out of 5-projects Letter showing | 78110790 |} 43 - 1A
taken by UBC 4 are completed successful completion of
and one is pending due to MES Kochi projects by UBC
change of plans, ' engineers. |
7. No losses in the company alter |
Kochi, |
8., Post removal of Petitioner UBC | |
has been appreciated by MES to |
complecte all projects,

Company Appeal(AT) No.256 of 2017

¢g—-179

176

177-173

179 - (8O

181 - 184



17

OMPANY AC 1IES

4

Date

Petitioners Acts

Pg. No
at

Pleadin

Reference
Compilati

Pg, No of

12.03.2010

Petitioner requested UBC to provide Affidavit in

support of SAP Enterprises (A Partnership Firm of

Petitioner and his wife] to get registered at DGNP
ishalchay am) where UBC has no interest.

2010 - 2014

5
2639

on
CEs

Through SAP enterprisss petitioner bagged more than
15 projects keeping UBC in dark. UBC's Goa and
Ezimala bids were cancelled due to SAP bidding for
same behind our back.

2637

|4

Pe‘.it_ioner was Director MES In charge of UBC as
admitted by him. He was supposed to work for UBC

but he was working in favour of SAP and against UBC

31.06.12-
22.08.13

1.04.13

Ccep-38
Para 2
(i)

Show cause notices were issued by MES due fo
neghgguce of Petitioner towards UBC's Kochi projects
wherein SAP's Kochi projects were in progress.

2783-
2789

14 -181

[R1-119

Petitioner being MES In charge - when P&L account of
h;-BC,l’Kuch.l was drawn out loss of 50 lacs approx.
shown.

2790

[oe=166-
182123

—00-20 |

14.09.2013

Petitioner incorporated a new Company SAP Marine
Infra Pvt Ltd to carry on competitive business.

|68

186

9.11.13-April,
2015

Wh;n MD Res no. 2 saw losses he stepped in to
mitigate losses of the Koehi project and personally
monifors the completion of the § Kochi projects.

2210-
2223

o=l 21—
184 185

A-203

April 2013 o
March 2014

R2 mitigated the losses in Kochi projzct and brought
them dowm from appox. 52 lacs, to approx. 27 lacs.

2792-
2793

194 4148

502-207 |

09.01.14

SAP behind the back participated in a MES tender
worth 12 crores. Anti-company activity of patitioners
cost UBC a big project as our tender was denied by
MES

2602 &

2550 || 5

M3-194

22.04.14

Before this date Petitioner had no problems with
working of UBC as his anti-company activities were
net revealed.

- Clearly reveals an act of vengeance of petitioner

CP-36
Pg. 70-
76

April 2014

Meeting proposed for removal of Petitioner, but could
not go through as the new Companies Act, 2013

became applicable.

2515

3.05.14

Notice for board meeting to be held on 12t May, 2014
for holding EQGM for Petitloners removal,

2515

8.05.1¢

As a counter attack the Petitioner filed a police
complaint in NRI i Police Station.

2515

12.05.14

Board meéting held wherein it was decided to hold
EQGM on 6% June, 2014,

2518

15.05.14

Company Petition was filed in vengeance for staying
EOGM

02.06.14

CLB ordered that the said EOGM can be held but
decision of removal shall be implemented only after

06.06.14

EEIM CLB.
Petitioner. removed with 76% majority for reasons set
out in the minutes.

2557

186~189

ROt -207

09.06.14

Had CLB Mumbei allowed the implementation of the
EQGM the UBC would have got a chance to participate
in Goa and Ezimala tenders.

2589

01.08.14
25.08.14

Misuse letter head of UBC writing bank asking
account statements where he has been in competitive
business,

2773
2774

21.11.14

AGM was propesed to be held wherein Petitioner filed
an application seeking  stay on the same, All the cash
registers were produced befors Hon'ble CLB, We
infcrmed the board that we do not intend to show the
same to Petitioner as he is in competing business
which the board allowed.

2471

40 -1

208-204

06.12.14

Affidavit of chandan bhingarde stating that the
Petitioner has tried to manipulate him for giving false

statement against the board end the company.

2472

Company Appeal(AT) No.256 of 2017
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@

12‘.2.11.14

B_nnrd. meeting was lisld wherein the hnancial
difficulties of company due to short of funds for
running kochi projects were transpired ameong the
board and financinl help at personal level was
demanded,

3023

T

l92.-193

)__2r0~_3,1|

2014-15

As per aforesnid meeting Pramod Narayan
contributed-10 lacs, Hepta - 33 Lac and omni - 1
crore, Wherein thers was no contribution of R,
Prasanth. Mr. K N pillai at the inception of the
Company contributed 45 lacs already.

Aforesaid is reflected in the petitioners CA page no.

02.02.15

3031

194

2|2

Invoice of 1.5 cr was submitted before DGNP Mumbal
for CDG projects.

10.02.15

Petitioner wrote to DGNP Mumbai to stop payment
against aforesaid invoice.

12,02.15

2724

98- 183 @ 15

Despite aforesnid order dated 21% Nov, 14 petitioner
misused UBC's letter head Lo obtain bank statements
of UBC to check whether his scheme to put the
company in financial trouble succeeded.

2775

)99

_!;z\'r

17.03.15

Against mal practices of petitioner Hon'ble board
advised the Petitioner not to involve in anti-company
activities and or make correspondence to third parties,

2776

205 '10'6-22-;3_;]“2(1

30.03.2015

In the beard meeting the company was falling short of
funds due to projects of kochi and UBC was in need of
short term finance. Everyone except the Petitioner
contributed,

3025
3030

- 109-10&1

218~ 222
+2a2s

15.05.15

Notice was sent to Petitioner. The UBC's renewal of
enlistment with DGNP was pending and hence we held
6 board meeting to inform and comply with formalities
regarding the same.

19.05.15

Petiticner fled CA before CLB, Mumbai. Prayer stalling
the aforesaid meeting and all further board meeting.
This clearly shows the malice of the petitioner. MES
contributes main stream business and non-renewal
would have caused great and irreparable harm to the
respondent.

25.06.15

The petitioner refused to
documents, Only after the respondent moved an
application to CLE and the said application was placed
before CLB hefore the last (date of signing and
submission of the seld renewal document the
petitioner signed the same.

sign ‘MES renewal

2468

208

126

After we stopped giving inside information to
Petitioner, it seems that SAP Enterprises went into
slow progress

3142

lzaq .21

la iy 8y
228 229

We moved an application in September was removing
the status of SAP Enterprises as sister concern to
prevent the slow progress and incompetency of SAP
Enterprises from affect UBC

]

212 -214

230-230

In vengeance, the Petitioner filed another application
for appointment of administrator in November 2015

TN Board Meeting it was discussed that company needa
to comply with formalities for getting the bank
overdradt facilitiss

Petitioner refused to provide his IT returns

171272015

R1 had to approach the CLB at New Delhi for getting
IT returns from Petitioner.

215217 722 235

Petitioner now refusing to sign MES affidavit for up-
gradation of class of contractor from A class to a
superior class namely “S" Class for giving flimsy
excuses -

Applicatlon filed with NCLT for directing the Petitioner
to sign the documents

Now SAP Enterprise project at Ezimala was retsndered

3143~
3144

1-Na did not get the project at Petitioner is a dircctor of
SAP Enterprises

CP-
1/245
EX- A

195

Company Appeal(AT) No.256 of 2017
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In the above chart on the extreme right by hand page numbers as before
NCLAT have been added as in appeal, Convenience Compilation. Learned
counsel for the respondents has made his submissions and arguments based
on the explanations as given above. The particulars given as Event are defence
and explanation of Respondents supported by Documents. According to the
learned counsel for the Respondents after the explanation to the allegations
as made by Appellant in NCLT, the list shows summary of the anti company
activities of the petitioner-appellant which were pointed out to the Learned
NCLT and cognisance of which was taken by the NCLT so as to reject the
claims being made by the appellant.

10. We have heard counsel for both sides and perused the record. It has
been argued by Learned Counsel for the appellant that the document dated
9th June, 2005 was actually a Sale Deed which was titled as Agreement to Sale
and the properties concerned were of the Company but subsequently the
Respondents executed Deed of Cancellation of Agreement dated 19t June,
2008 without Board Resolution and appellant was kept in the dark with regard
to such Cancellation of Agreement. At the time of argument although the
Learned Counsel for the appellant tried to say that there was a Sale Deed on
9th June, 2005, we had noticed that the contents were in the nature of
Agreement of Sale. Even regarding consideration the contents mentioned say
that the Builder agreed to sell and the purchasers agreed to purchase (para 3)
at total construction (should be consideration) of Rs.17,50,000/-. As parties,
this document had signatures only of the Respondent No.2 one in his
individual capacity and second as Managing Director of the Company. The

reverse document of Deed of Cancellation also has signatures only of the
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Respondent No.2 in two capacities. This time, of course, it was mentioned
that the purchaser had earlier paid Rs.17,50,000/- by way of full and final
payment in the Agreement for Sale dated 9t June, 2005 which were now being
returned as it is and the receipt was recorded for having received said refund
of advance payment made to the purchaser. Ordinarily if the Company has
received possession even under an Agreement, we would expect the Directors
to protect the possession. However, here it would be necessary to refer to the
facts of the matter to consider if we should interfere. Counsel for Respondents
referred to his convenience Compilation Page 22 to argue that the Company
was mainly having business from being contractor of MES and in May 2005
MES had written letter informing that the immovable property shown by the
Company was personal property of one of the Directors and could not be taken
as the property of the Company and so document showing the properties,
assets and liabilities of the firm should be submitted. The defence of the
respondents is that because of such requirement of MES, the property which
was of the Respondent No.2 was shown as property of the Company by
executing Agreement to Sale and subsequently the Company was able to
purchase property at Dighode and so reverse document was executed. A copy
of the document of purchase of property at Dighode has been pointed out by
the Respondents at Page 30 of their Compilation. We are not entering into
analysing the nature of Agreement to Sale and Deed of Cancellation any
further as the Respondents have shown that in 2009 itself, after the Deed of
Cancellation the Respondent Company had informed Chief Engineer, Navi
Mumbai regarding replacement of immovable property, copy of the letter is at

Page 37 of convenience compilation of respondents. This is dated 1st April,
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2009. It enclosed new affidavit incorporating the particulars of movable and
immovable property belonging to the Company. The affidavit dated 26t
March, 2009 which is also signed by the appellant shows that the appellant
and Respondent No.2 and 3 by this notarised affidavit stated details as to the
movable and immovable properties of the company. One list is of movable
properties. The other list is of immovable properties which now included only
reference to the property at Dighode. We find substance in the argument of
Learned Counsel for Respondents that these documents as well as Balance
Sheet for period ending 31st March, 2012, copies of which have been filed at
Page 38 to 42 with the convenience compilation and which also bear
signatures of the appellant did not show the property of G-36, Belapur, Navi
Mumbai as the property of the Company and the appellant was aware of it and
true purpose why the Agreement to Sale and Cancellation Deed were executed.
As in the affidavit of 26th March, 2009 itself the property G-36, Belapur, Navi
Mumbai was not included and the appellant never raised objections till
respondents initiated action against him, such stale claims made by the
appellant in Company Petition filed on 15t May, 2014 may have to be ignored.
Thus we reject the allegations made by the appellant with regard to transfer
of registered office of the company; his grievance regarding substitution of the
same with MES as well as the allegations regarding agreement to sale and the
deed of cancellation. We will not look into such stale claim in the face of
conduct of the appellant himself. The appellant earlier never had difficulty
when such documents were executed and belated grievances made are
rejected. There is no substance in the excuse that he was looking after

projects only and did not know what was happening in the Company affairs.
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11. It is the grievance of appellant that after Deed of Cancellation,
respondent No.2 started taking rent for the premises of G-36, Belapur, Navi
Mumbai from where the company was functioning. Learned counsel for the
Respondents referred to this grievance as Allegation No.5 in the Convenience
Compilation and referred to copies of documents filed at Page 59-62 and
submitted that the records of the company in the shaper of Balance Sheet as
on 31st March, 2012 which shoed the appellant also to be one of the signatories
as Director did show room rent being paid to the Respondent No.2 and thus
the appellant had knowledge of the affairs and did not raise disputes till 2014
when Respondents started taking action against the appellant. Considering
the submissions and records pointed out by the Respondents, we discard the
allegations made on this count by the appellant and will not interfere in the
internal management of the Company.

12. The appellant has made allegation that from the property of the
company at G-36 Belapur there were other partnership firms belonging to the
respondents conducting business for which the stationery and staff of the
company was being used. We have seen the Company Petition, it does not
give any particulars in details regarding the portions of the building in G-36,
Belapur which were in possession of the company. The Agreement to Sale
which is on record, if that was to be considered it shows that there was a
building with various floors and some parts of it were subject matter in the
Agreement to Sale. In a situation where it appears from record that the
building had various floors and portions, without Appellant clearly spelling
out which portions, floors of the building were in possession of the company,

it appears difficult to consider this allegation of the appellant. The
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respondents in their compilation while dealing with the Explanation of
Allegation No.6 in NCLT, on this count brought on record Service Tax,
registrations of the four companies and added that the Respondent No.1l
company was operating from 2rd floor of G-36, Belapur and the four
partnerships referred were in other portions. It appears to us that the
appellant failed to clearly bring on record the details to show that unconnected
partnerships were operating from the premises in possession of the company.
There have to be documents more than, service tax registration to show that
other partnership firms were actually operating from premises of the company.
Referring to merely “G-36” by the appellant cannot be said to be sufficient.

13. The other allegation of the appellant is that the Respondent No.2 had
personal bungalow at Kharghar and for that bungalow material and labour at
the cost of Respondent No.1 company was used. We have referred supra to a
document at Page 218 of the Compilation filed by the Appellant, pointed out
on this count by the Learned Counsel for the appellant. Learned counsel for
the respondents referred to this allegation of the appellant as Allegation
No.7(A) which was made before NCLT and regarding which explanation is given
in the Convenience Compilation read with pleadings and documents. Learned
counsel pointed out the pleadings of respondents in this regard submitted in
NCLT (Convenience Compilation Page 84) and submitted that Respondent
No.2 had not siphoned any money for the construction of his Bungalow at Plot
No.144, Sector 21, Kharghar. According to the Respondents there was audit
of the accounts of the company in 2011-12 and 2012-13 and no objections on
this count were raised. Referring to the invoices being relied on by the

appellant the defence is that in 2012 a Company by name Terex Noell, a US
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based company, proposed respondent company for grant of distributorship
and representative agreement. It is stated that negotiations took place in 2012
and 2013 and one of the condition put by the US based company was that the
respondent company should have a godown and distributorship office
somewhere near JLNP and upcoming Navi Mumbai airport. Respondent
company was locating premises and the premises at Shop No.23, Plot No.28,
Sector 4, Kharghar, Navi Mumbai was located which was approved by the US
based company and a Memorandum of Understanding with respect to the said
office at Kharghar was entered into by the respondent company with the owner
for the purpose of renovating the same as per requisite conditions of the US
based company. Respondents claim that for this purpose some expenses were
incurred. The invoices pointed out have no connection with Respondent No.2.
Respondents claim that Respondent No.2 has a bungalow at Kharghar and
the argument is that some articles were stored at the premises of Respondent
No.2 at Kharghar for such purpose. According to the counsel for Respondent
the invoices shown are of hardly Rs.1 lakh. The plan of distributorship at
JNLPT did not work out and the American Company instead gave the project
to respondent company at Pipava. Itis claimed that Respondent company got
business of more than Rs.1 crore from the said American Company. Learned
counsel pointed out to the email and other documents in this context which
are referred with the Explanation of Allegation No.7(A) of the Convenience
Compilation. Itis argued that regarding the bungalow of Respondent No.2 at
Kharghar it was already completed in 2013 and there is also occupation
certificate. The Learned Counsel for the Respondents took us through the

documents and pleadings in this regard with the Explanation of Allegation
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No.7 (A) referred in the compilation of the respondents which was filed before
NCLT.

14. Even regarding Allegation of Company resources being used for
renovation of property at Kochi belonging to Ms Anita Pillai, wife of Respondent
No.2, the Respondents have shown documents with the Explanation of
Allegation 7(B) which indicate that the company was using that premises for
use of the company. It appears that part of the property was converted into
office of the company for holding meetings. The address of the bungalow was
recorded in Vat Registration form and MES authorities also made
correspondence on that address.

15. Then there is allegation of the appellant that the Respondent Company
which had itself taken loans from the Banks gave loan of Rs.24 lakhs to Uni
Build Engineers which was related company of the Respondent No.2. The
Learned Counsel for the Respondents referred to the documents in this
connection given with Explanation of Allegation No.8 in NCLT, to demonstrate
that if the loan was given, it was returned with interest within three weeks.
This also happened before the Company Petition was filed. It would not be
appropriate for us to given undue weightage to this instance. We do not find
substance in the various allegations made by the Appellant to be such so as
to treat the same as oppression or mismanagement.

16. Record shows that the Respondents initiated action against the
appellant to remove him as Director. The respondents have given various
instances of misconduct to claim that the appellant indulged in anti-company
activities. When the appellant stood on technicalities regarding time the

respondents appear to have sent fresh notice dated 3.5.2014 and EOGM came
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to be held on 6.6.2014. Before this the appellant had filed the Company
Petition on 15.5.2014. The NCLT looked into this aspect and did not find fault
with the removal of the appellant from the post of Director. We do not find
any reason to disagree with the NCLT. In fact, we have gone through the other
finding also which have been recorded by the NCLT with regard to the various
allegations made by the appellant and those allegations did not find favour
with the NCLT. We agree with the NCLT regarding its findings regarding the
various allegations. In fact, it is interesting to see that the appellant even
pushed through a Criminal Complaint in the Court of Judicial Magistrate, 1st
Class at Belapur in Regular Criminal Case No.766/2014 making some
allegations as in this Company Petition and the Judicial Magistrate 1st Class
considered the matter under Section 403, 406, 420, 506(2) read with Section
120(b) of the IPC and after analysing evidence of the various witnesses found
the Respondent No.2 to 5 not guilty. Reference may be made to para 26 of
that judgement where referring to the witnesses, the Magistrate recorded that
none of the employees deposed that they were working for those other
companies. Clearly, the allegation of misuse of staff for other partnerships
did not find favour with the JMFC. Copy of the judgement has been filed with
Diary No.7511.

17. For the above reasons, we do not find any substance in this appeal so

as to interfere with the impugned judgement and order passed by the NCLT.
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18. The appeal is rejected. The appellant shall pay each of the five
respondents cost of this appeal which shall be Rs.50,000/- each (Total

Rs.2,50,000/-).

(Justice A.I.S.Cheema)
Member (Judicial)

(Mr. Balvinder Singh)
Member (Technical)

New Delhi
Bm
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